
 1

MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

 
Commissioners’ Meeting 
March 25, 2021 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY  
**HELD VIA RECORDED VIRTUAL/TELECONFERENCE DUE TO COVID‐19** 

   
Chairman Rattner called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM.  Following the virtual Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag, announcement 
was made that adequate notice of this meeting had been provided for as defined by the “Open Public Meetings Act”. 

 
Members Present:  James Benson, Michael Grogan, Brian McNeilly, Melanie Michetti, Michael Pucilowski, Steven 

Rattner, Thomas Romano, Richard Schindelar, Joseph Schwab, Elmer Still, Jack Sylvester  
 
Members Absent:    Andrew Cangiano 
 
Others Present:  Tom Carroll QPA, Pat Dwyer Esq., James Schilling MSA Director, Jilliam Martucci Administrative, 

Jim Wancho PE,  
 
Attendance Roll Call: 

Mr. Benson  Present  Chairman Rattner  Present  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Present  
Mr. Grogan  Present  Mr. Schindelar  Present  
Mr. McNeilly  Present  Mr. Schwab   Present 
Mrs. Michetti  Present  Mr. Still  Present 
Mr. Pucilowski  Present  Mr. Sylvester  Present 

 
 

 



 2

 

 
Chairman Rattner opened and closed the meeting to the public. 
 
The “Re‐Organization” meeting minutes of February 25, 2021 were moved on a motion offered by Mr. Romano, seconded by 
Mr. Sylvester.  All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Abstain 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
The “Regular” meeting minutes of February 25, 2021 were moved on a motion offered by Mrs. Michetti, seconded by Mr. 
Pucilowski.  All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Abstain 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
 
 
The Financial Reports for 2020 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. McNeilly   
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Schwab stated no comments.  Mr. McNeilly stated if the Treasurer is happy, he is happy.  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

Financial Report – 2020 

 



 4

 
 
 



 5

 



 6

 
 



 7

 
 

 
 



 8

The Financial Reports for 2021 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. McNeilly   
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

 
Comments: 

 N/A 
Financial Report – 2021 

 



 9

 
 



 10

 
 



 11

 
 



 12

 

 



 13

The Pending Vouchers for through March 18, 2021 were approved for payment on a motion offered by Mr. Romano, seconded 
by Mr. Schwab and the affirmative roll call vote of members present. Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments:  

   Mr. Schwab thanked Mr. Carroll, QPA for also reviewing the financials 

 



 14

 



 15

The following correspondence for the month of February, 2021 was received and filed on a motion offered by Mr. Sylvester, 
seconded by Mrs. Michetti. All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments:  

 Mr. Pucilowski asked if James would be discussing Correspondence C, Mr. Schilling stated he will be  

 Chairman Rattner asked Mrs. Michetti if the Correspondence for the Affordable Housing pertained to the MSA at all.  
Mrs. Michetti advised that she did not review the ordinances, Chairman Rattner stated he was not sure on the Mountain 
address.  Mr. Schilling stated that this information was included just so the Board was aware although it does not pertain 
to the MSA. 

 Mr. Schwab stated that he has comments of Correspondence C when we get to it. 
 

Monthly Reports: 
The Director's Report, and Maintenance and Repairs Report, for the month of March, 2021 and Flow Data for February, 2021 
was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Sylvester and seconded by Mr. Schwab. All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Schilling advised that we received the local finance letter that each Commissioner register by 04.30.2021 
which is the deadline. 

 Mr. Schilling asked the Board for their support with regard to Resolution 21‐19 for the VFD’s.  Mr. Schilling 
advised that many of the VFD’s will require smaller VFD’s due to the lower horse power pumps installed over the 
last year.  He also stated that there is a significant price difference that we will all understand following the 
preventive maintenance & inspection completion.  Typically, a VFD is 10‐15 years, we are at year 11.  
Unfortunately, they are all beginning to fail one at a time. 

 We are replacing two VFD’s the cost price point would be $5300.00 separately and $4844.00 to replace both, 
$5300 separately. One is for an Aerator; one is for sludge management system.  Mr. Schilling stated that he 
planned to speak to Mr. Still the purchasing commissioner this evening.  

o Mr. Still stated that we would have to verify that the funds are available with Mr. Schwab 
o Mr. Schwab stated that he wanted to speak on this when we get to the resolution.  

 Mr. Schilling also spoke about the Mount Arlington Basin behind PS#3, he stated that he has spoken to Melanie 
& Jim yesterday (03.24.2021) and that this morning (03.25.2021) MSA staff installed the aerator and that he was 
out there with the staff he noted: no odors, basin looked okay, stagnant.  Mr. Schilling did state that he does 
have a concern about the severe drainage that flows off the driveway & road.  He has photos of the debris that 
he will forward out to the Board.  Again, he noted: no odors or white sheen or substance.   

 Mr. Schilling asked Chairman Rattner if he could get his hands on the Lake Hopatcong report.  Chairman Rattner 
stated for James to send him exactly what we are looking for & he will get his hands on it.   

 Mr. Schilling stated that he & Mrs. Michetti discussed if an OPRA request was prudent, 
o Mrs. Michetti suggested that we attempt to collect same samples, MSA Staff is going to try to collect E. 

coli samples to determine if there is any human waste from septic leakage.  
o Chairman Rattner stated that testing was done in the Musconetcong River and it was determined that 

following significant rainfall the levels were higher, they did DNA testing to determine it was animals 
and which animals which it turned out to be bear, deer and some type of fowl‐he doesn’t recall the 



 16

exact bird. He also suggested that if there are complaints, we should be going out right away, not 3 days 
later.   

o Mr. Schwab stated the report is dated November 2020, he questioned if this was such a great concern 
why weren’t we notified immediately.   

o Mr. Schilling replied that the MSA being mentioned in a report that we weren’t aware of, he would have 
liked to participate in, there is no indication that there is anything abnormal at PS#3  

o Mr. Schilling did state that Mrs. Michetti pointed out that we also weren’t aware there was an issue 
PS#4 until it surfaced, slightly different circumstances because PS#4 was ground water that rotted out 
valve’s hardware.  PS#3 is at a considerably higher elevation than the basin, the pipes run in the 
complete opposite direction, they are not in proximity to that immediate area and again there are no 
odors & no debris.  

o Mr. McNeilly asked Mr. Schilling if this was paid for by the Lake Hopatcong Commission, Mr. Schilling 
replied that the only information we have is the single page that was supplied to the Board and that is 
why he asking if we can get our hands on the entire report, we only know that Princeton Hydro did the 
work for Lake Hopatcong to determine the cost of remediating & restoring the retention basins.  Mr. 
Schilling stated that again he was there this morning and also please note the significant rain fall we 
have had over the last few days, the pond looked good, there are no odors, there is a considerable 
amount of debris in our driveway & parking area.  

o Chairman Rattner suggested contacting the town and advising that the run off is damaging our area.  
 Mr. Schwab asked Mrs. Michetti if that is a county road, Mrs. Michetti agreed yes, it is. 
 Mr. Still stated that he does not think it’s a big deal, that they are looking where the runoff is 

coming from. 
 Mr. McNeilly suggested keeping track of costs, produce a one sheet correspondence once we 

have our results.  Mr. McNeilly further stated that neighboring property owner shouldn’t being 
going after government entities to correct their issues.   

 Chairman Rattner stated that it wouldn’t make a difference because we have no connection 
with the retention basins. 

 Mr. Schwab asked Mr. Wancho, PE if we typically have an outfall structure.  Mr. Wancho, 
responded yes but that he didn’t see it in the photos.  Mr. Schilling advised that he has a lot of 
photos he would like to forward on.   Mr. Schwab stated the outfall structure could possibly 
have 3 or 4 feet of leaves blocking it. 

 Chairman Rattner stated that if it anything on the County Road to let him know and he can likely 
have it handled in just a few weeks. 

 Mr. Still stated that there should be something noting that it runs into our driveway.  
o Mr. Schilling stated that the Engineering Committee will be reconvening as their meeting yesterday was 

cut short due to technical issues. 
o Mr. Schilling also stated that he would be reaching out to the Personnel Committee to set up a meeting. 
o Mr. Schwab asked about the status of the Audit.  

 Mrs. Martucci, admin advised that we have been sending them supporting documentation and 
expect them to have the Audit wrapped up mid‐April.  

 
The Engineer’s Report for the month of March, 2021 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Pucilowski, seconded by Mr. 
Schindelar.  All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Wancho, PE advised that there has been  

 Chairman Rattner stated that the State Park is working on the sewer lines for the last month  



 17

o Mrs. Michetti confirmed. 
o Mr. Wancho, PE stated that he understands we will be notified when we need to be on site. 
o Mrs. Michetti advised mark outs are complete and it is estimated April/May start date.  She will advise 

Mr. Wancho, PE & Mr. Schilling as soon as she knows.    
 
New Business: 
Resolution No. 21‐18 was offered on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab seconded by Mr. Pucilowski and the affirmative all‐in favor 
vote of members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Yes 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 

Comments: 

 N/A 
 
Resolution No. 21‐19 was offered on a motion by Mr. Romano seconded by Mr. Still and the change of verbiage was offered on a 
motion by Mr. Romano seconded by Mr. Schindelar and the affirmative roll call vote of members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Yes  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

   
*See attached resolution 
   
Comments: 

 Mr. Schwab stated that he reviewed both proposals, Rapid Pump states the proposal states semi annual 
inspection, how many times will this be completed  

o Mr. Schilling advised that it is supposed to be a one and done, they did not follow the scope of what was 
requested. 

o Mr. Schwab stated that he believes the proposal should state that it is in fact one and done not semi 
annual  

o Pat Dwyer, Esq. stated that we can reword the resolution to reflect that it is one time inspection.  
o Mr. Schwab stated that semi‐annual inspection makes it confusing if we could just correct that. 
o Mr. Dwyer, Esq., Mr. Schwab, & Mr. Carroll all agreed just to have the vendor revise the document.  
o Mr. Schwab asked if we could table this resolution, Mr. Schilling advised that this is an urgent matter 

and that he does not want to wait another month.  
o Mr. Dwyer, Esq. stated that as long as the money does not change it is fine.  
o Mr. Carroll, QPA confirmed the amount of $9875.00. 
o Mr. Schwab confirmed with Mr. Dwyer, Esq. that we can move forward so long as we have the revised 

resolution & proposal.  
o Mr. Dwyer, Esq. stated that we will amend the resolution to reflect the inspection is one time only.  

 
New Business: 

Comments: 

 None 
 

Old Business: 



 18

 None 
Comments: 

 N/A 
 

Closed Session: 
Motion made by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. Sylvester to move into Closed Session to discuss Personnel and the All in 
Favor Vote of members present at 8:10 pm. 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

   
Open Session: 

Motion made by Mr. Sylvester, seconded by Mr. Still to move into Open Session and the All in Favor Vote of members 
present at 8:22 pm. 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Adjournment: 

Motion made by Mr. Still, seconded by Mr. Schindelar and the All in Favor Vote of members present, Chairman Rattner 
adjourned the meeting at 8:23 pm. 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Absent  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Aye  Mr. Schindelar  Aye 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted: 
Jilliam Martucci ‐ Administrative Assistant 



 19

 

 
 
 



 20

 

 



 21

 

 



 22

 



 23

 
 
 
 


